

MALVERN TOWN COUNCIL

POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE

REPORTS

For meeting on Wednesday 6 November 2024 at 6.00 pm In the Park View Meeting Room, Community Hub, Victoria Park Road, Malvern Link

MALVERN TOWN COUNCIL

Town Clerk Community Hub Victoria Park Road Malvern Link WR14 2JY



townclerk@malvern-tc.org.uk

31 October 2024

01684 566667

MEETING OPEN TO MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC

To Members of the Policy and Resources Committee (Quorum 5):

Councillors Iain Dawson (Chair), Clive Fletcher, Emma Green, Clive Hooper, Nick Houghton, Melanie Jones, Lou Lowton, Ronan McLaverty-Head, Karen Newbigging

All other Members of the Town Council for information only.

You are hereby invited to attend a meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee to be held in the Park View Meeting Room, Community Hub, Victoria Park Road, Malvern Link, WR14 2JY on Wednesday 6 November 2024, commencing at 6.00pm for the transaction of the business shown on the Agenda below.

1J.Bac

Linda Blake <u>Town Clerk</u>

No.	Agenda Item			
1.	Apologies for Absence			
	To receive and note apologies for absence			
2. Declarations of Interest				
	To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary interests and other disclosable interests			
3.	Minutes of Previous Meeting			
	To receive and confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the previous Policy and Resources Committee meetings:			
	12 September 2024 (previously circulated)			
	2 October 2024 (previously circulated)			
The N the pu	c Participation leeting will be adjourned for public participation when the Chairman will invite members of ablic to present their questions, statements or petitions submitted under the Council's Public apation Procedure.			
4.	Review of Financial Regulations			
	Report PR01/24 to follow			
5.	Budget Discussion Document 2025/26			
	Committee discussion on factors to be included and/or considered in the budget for 2025/26			
	 Report PR02/24 to follow 			
6.	Date and Time of Next Meeting			
	➢ Wednesday 11 December 2024 at 6.00 pm			

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE MALVERN TOWN COUNCIL held in the Community Hub Meeting Room, Victoria Park on Thursday 12 September 2024 at 6pm

Councillors I Dawson (Chair) C Fletcher C Hooper N Houghton M Jones J MacLusky R McLaverty-Head K Newbigging

Absent E Green (apologies) L Lowton (apologies)

Also in attendance Linda Blake - Town Clerk Louise Wall – Minute Clerk

17. <u>APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE</u>

Apologies for absence from Cllrs Mel Jones and Lou Lowton were **NOTED**.

18. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

19. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

It was **RESOLVED** that the minutes of the following meeting be approved and adopted as a correct record of the proceedings, and signed by the Chairman:

> Policy and Resources Committee meeting held on 22 August 2024.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

None.

20. REVIEW OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

Report PR01/24 was received and accepted.

Officers had produced a table comparing the current Malvern Town Council model financial regulations, the revised NALC financial regulations and operational recommendations specific to Malvern Town Council. At the previous meeting, pages 1 to 24 had been reviewed.

Members of the committee worked through the table of financial regulations from page 25 to the end, reviewing each point separately before deciding which regulation to include in the Council's revised financial regulations.

It was **AGREED** that officers would collate all comments and revisions into a new draft document which would then be circulated to committee members. A final meeting would be arranged for agreement of the draft and recommendation to Full Council.

21. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

It was **AGREED** that the date of the next meeting would be Wednesday 2 October 2024 at 6pm.

The meeting finished at 7.57 pm

.....(Chairman)

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE MALVERN TOWN COUNCIL held in the Community Hub Meeting Room, Victoria Park on Wednesday 2 October 2024 at 6pm

Councillors C Hooper (Chair) N Houghton C Fletcher

R McLaverty-Head

M Jones

Absent

I Dawson (apologies) E Green (apologies) K Newbigging (apologies) L Lowton

Also in attendance

Linda Blake - Town Clerk Louise Wall – Minute Clerk M Birks – Mayor of Malvern Representatives from organisations seeking a Town Council grant

In the absence of the Chair of Policy and Resources Committee Cllr Iain Dawson, the meeting was chaired by Vice-chair Cllr Clive Hooper.

22. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence from Cllrs Iain Dawson, Emma Green and Karen Newbigging were **NOTED**.

23. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

None.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

It was **AGREED** that members of the public who had attended the meeting to speak in support of their grant application would be allocated up to five minutes each in public participation.

Small grants

<u>Monksfield Allotment Association ± 500 </u> – three members of the association were in attendance. Dr Marion Helme explained that the ± 500 grant they had applied for would be used to purchase a replacement awning cover for the communal seating area plus two raised beds and grass matting for a new well-being garden. This would provide accessible gardening for anyone that used a wheelchair or was unable to manage a full or half-plot. It was hoped that with the association membership of around 75 people, and various social events planned for 2025, over two hundred people would benefit from this grant if awarded.

<u>Malvern Community Art Therapy ± 500 </u> – Genevieve Collier had recently set up a therapeutic art group in Malvern, and requested a ± 500 grant towards a sink unit with splash back, various racks and fittings for painting equipment and a card reader for taking payments. She explained that there was a need for such an art group to

provide therapy for people with mental health problems, young adults suffering from anxiety and social isolation, and women recovering from domestic abuse and trauma amongst others. Eight members of the community from an existing group will attend initially, with an expectation of around thirty people attending each week as the group develops.

Large grants

<u>Malvern Museum of Local History £2,500</u> – Maggie Radway explained that a grant of £2,500 would be used towards the total cost of £20,000 for conservation work and repairs to the medieval stonework, roof and windows. Works would improve the look of the ground floor area for visitors, which in turn would hopefully encourage repeat visits and new visitors. Around 5,000 people visit the museum each year, which in 2022-23 made an economic impact on the local economy of over £150,000.

<u>Malvern Men's Shed £1,250</u> – Tony Palmer explained that Malvern Men's Shed is part of a nationwide network of groups where people can gather, chat and improve their mental health by sharing practical skills and knowledge. The Town Council had previously awarded an amount to purchase various woodworking equipment, and this application was for a high-level air filter dust extractor, a planer thicknesser, metal detector and sander, a sharpening system and some general tools. Since opening in 2020, membership has grown steadily to the current 68 people. The group is open to everyone and one aim is to increase the number of sessions available.

<u>The Theatre of Small Convenience £2,500</u> – Dr Jan Birtle and Loz Samuels attended the meeting and spoke about how they had recently secured ownership of the theatre from Malvern Hills District Council. Although it was in poor condition, they hoped to carry out some rapid restoration works to prevent any further deterioration and progress further works to enable the building to be opened to the public. The theatre is an important part of Malvern's heritage and features in the Guiness Book of World Records. The total cost of the project was estimated to be \pounds 6,450 and the group has applied for other funding to enable the project to be completed by early next year.

<u>The Chase School £2,500</u> – Ed Dixon, D&T Faculty Lead at The Chase School attended the meeting to explain an extracurricular project he hoped to deliver for Key Stage 3 students, although it could expand to include other students in the future. The Greenpower formula 24 project would see students designing, building and racing a single seat electric-powered racing car, with the intention of competing in a national endurance racing series at historic racing circuits around the country. Greenpower Education Trust is a charity that aims to inspire more young people to become engineers by making the subject interesting and relevant, and encouraging them to solve real time problems. Around 15 students would take part initially with numbers expected to grow each year. The total cost of the project is £3,275 and The Chase School would fund the difference if the grant was awarded.

<u>The Curious Cabinet £3,500</u> – Tania Robertson explained that in the past ten years 800 libraries have closed and part of the reason people did not engage with their local library was that they did not know what to do there. Visual Art helps to break down barriers for people and so she started the exhibition programme to bring the library into a modern visual art world. The Curious Cabinet project was a series of twelve exhibitions which started in May, located in the foyer of Malvern Library. The grant applied for would cover costs for four exhibitions and five workshops including fees of a number of professional London-based artists invited to work for the project, materials, room hire and repair to the cabinet itself.

24. <u>SMALL GRANTS SCHEME 1ST ROUND 2024/25</u>

Report PR01/24 was received and accepted.

Malvern Community Art Therapy

It was **AGREED** to award a grant of £500 to Malvern Community Art Therapy.

Monksfield Allotment Association

Councillors **AGREED** that the amount of £500 applied for by the allotment association should be increased to £750.

It was **AGREED** to award a grant of £750 to Monksfield Allotment Association.

25. LARGE GRANTS SCHEME, 1ST ROUND 2024/25

Report PR02/24 was received and accepted.

Malvern Museum

It was **AGREED** to defer a decision on Malvern Museum's grant application until they were able to provide more detailed information on the amount of reserves and how much, if any, was earmarked for building repairs.

Malvern Men's Shed

It was **AGREED** to award a grant of £1,250 to Malvern Men's Shed.

The Theatre of Small Convenience

It was **AGREED** to award a grant of £2,500 to The Theatre of Small Convenience.

The Chase School

Councillors were keen to ensure that all students, including those on lower incomes, were able to participate in the project and that extra effort should be made to reach disadvantaged children.

Under Standing Order 3(x) Committee agreed to extend the meeting for 15 minutes.

Councillors also felt that the amount requested was high and that the school and pupils should aim to gain extra funding from local businesses.

It was **AGREED** to award a grant of £1,500 to The Chase School on condition that the school invites all students personally in receipt of the pupil premium grant to attend a lunchtime meeting to explain that the project is available to them and give encouragement that they should participate.

The Curious Cabinet

Cllr Jones declared an interest in this item, having known Andrew Judd who started the project. This did not affect her ability to participate and vote.

Councillors were confused by the application, feeling there was a lack of clarity, objectives were not clearly identified and there was not a comprehensive rationale underpinning it.

It was **AGREED** to reject the application for a grant of £3,500.

Councillors asked that the applicant be invited to apply to the grants scheme in the future and advised that Town Council officers would provide assistance with the application if required.

26. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING

It was **AGREED** that the date of the next meeting would be Wednesday 6 November 2024 at 6pm.

The meeting finished at 8.07 pm

.....(Chairman)

AGENDA ITEM 4 REPORT PRC01/24



MALVERN TOWN COUNCIL

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS 2024

Contents

1.	GENERAL	2
2.	RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL	3
3.	ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT	4
4.	BUDGET AND PRECEPT	5
5.	BUDGETARY CONTROL AND AUTHORITY TO SPEND	6
6.	PROCUREMENT	7
7.	BANKING AND PAYMENTS	9
8.	ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS	10
9.	CHEQUE PAYMENTS	11
10.	PAYMENT CARDS	11
11.	PETTY CASH	11
12.	PAYMENT OF SALARIES AND ALLOWANCES	11
13.	LOANS AND INVESTMENTS	12
14.	INCOME	13
15.	PAYMENTS UNDER CONTRACTS FOR BUILDING OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION WORKS	13
16.	STORES AND EQUIPMENT	13
17.	ASSETS, PROPERTIES AND ESTATES	14
18.	INSURANCE	14
19.	CHARITIES	15
20.	SUSPENSION AND REVISION OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS	15

Malvern Town Council is referred to as "the Council" in these Financial Regulations.

MALVERN TOWN COUNCIL

FINANCIAL REGULATIONS 2024

1. GENERAL

- 1.1. These Financial Regulations govern the financial management of the Council and may only be amended or varied by resolution of the Council. They are one of the Council's governing documents and shall be observed in conjunction with the Council's Standing Orders.
- 1.2. The Council is responsible in law for ensuring that its financial management is adequate and effective and that the Council has a sound system of internal control which facilitates the effective exercise of the Council's functions, including arrangements for the management of risk.
- 1.3. The Council's accounting control systems must include measures:
 - for the timely production of accounts;
 - that provide for the safe and efficient safeguarding of public money;
 - to prevent and detect inaccuracy and fraud; and
 - identifying the duties of officers.
- 1.4. These Financial Regulations demonstrate how the Council meets these responsibilities and requirements.
- 1.5. Councillors are expected to follow these regulations and not to entice employees to breach them. Failure to follow these regulations brings the office of Councillor into disrepute.
- 1.6. Wilful breach of these regulations by an employee may result in disciplinary proceedings.
- 1.7. The Responsible Financial Officer (RFO) holds a statutory office, appointed by the Council. The Town Clerk has been appointed as RFO and these regulations apply accordingly. The RFO:
 - acts under the policy direction of the Council;
 - administers the Council's financial affairs in accordance with all Acts, Regulations and proper practices;
 - determines on behalf of the Council its accounting records and control systems;
 - ensures the accounting control systems are observed;
 - ensures the accounting records are kept up to date;
 - seeks economy, efficiency and effectiveness in the use of Council resources; and
 - produces financial management information as required by the Council.
- 1.8. The accounting records determined by the RFO shall be sufficient to show and explain the Council's transactions and to enable the RFO to ensure that any income and expenditure account and statement of balances, or record of receipts and payments and additional information, as the case may be, or management information prepared for the Council from time to time comply with the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

- **1.9.** The Council must not delegate any decision regarding:
 - setting the final budget or the precept (Council tax requirement);
 - the outcome of a review of the effectiveness of its internal controls;
 - approving accounting statements;
 - approving an annual governance statement;
 - borrowing;
 - declaring eligibility for the General Power of Competence; and
 - addressing recommendations from the internal or external auditors.
- 1.10. In addition the Council must:
 - determine and keep under regular review the bank mandate for all Council bank accounts;
 - approve any grant or a single commitment in excess of £5,000; and
 - in respect of the annual salary for any employee have regard to recommendations about annual salaries of employees.
- 1.11. In these Financial Regulations:
 - 'Accounts and Audit Regulations' means the regulations issued under Sections 32, 43(2) and 46 of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, or any superseding legislation, and then in force, unless otherwise specified.
 - "Approve" refers to an online action, allowing an electronic transaction to take place.
 - "Authorise" refers to a decision by the Council, or a committee or an officer, to allow something to happen.
 - 'Proper practices' means those set out in The Practitioners' Guide
 - Practitioners' Guide refers to the guide issued by the Joint Panel on Accountability and Governance (JPAG) and published by NALC in England or Governance and Accountability for Local Councils in Wales – A Practitioners' Guide jointly published by One Voice Wales and the Society of Local Council Clerks in Wales.
 - 'Must' and **bold text** refer to a statutory obligation the Council cannot change.
 - 'Shall' refers to a non-statutory instruction by the Council to its members and staff.

2. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

- 2.1. The Council must ensure that it has a sound system of internal control, which delivers effective financial, operational and risk management.
- 2.2. The Town Clerk with the Operations Manager shall prepare, for approval by the Council, a risk management policy covering all activities of the Council. This policy and consequential risk management arrangements shall be reviewed by the Council at least annually.

- 2.3. When considering any new activity, the Town Clerk with the Operations Manager shall prepare a draft risk assessment including risk management proposals for consideration by the Council.
- 2.4. At least once a year, the Council must review the effectiveness of its system of internal control, before approving the Annual Governance Statement.
- 2.5. The accounting control systems determined by the RFO must include measures to:
 - ensure that risk is appropriately managed;
 - ensure the prompt, accurate recording of financial transactions;
 - prevent and detect inaccuracy or fraud; and
 - allow the reconstitution of any lost records;
 - identify the duties of officers dealing with transactions and
 - ensure division of responsibilities.
- 2.6. At least once in each financial year end, a member of the Audit Committee shall be appointed to verify bank reconciliations (for all accounts) produced by the RFO. The member shall sign and date the reconciliations and the original bank statements (or similar document) as evidence of this. This activity, including any exceptions, shall be reported to and noted by the Council.
- 2.7. Regular back-up copies shall be made of the records on any Council computer and stored either online or in a separate location from the computer. The Council shall put measures in place to ensure that the ability to access any Council computer is not lost if an employee leaves or is incapacitated for any reason.

3. ACCOUNTS AND AUDIT

- 3.1. All accounting procedures and financial records of the Council shall be determined by the RFO in accordance with the Accounts and Audit Regulations.
- 3.2. The accounting records determined by the RFO must be sufficient to explain the Council's transactions and to disclose its financial position with reasonably accuracy at any time. In particular, they must contain:
 - day-to-day entries of all sums of money received and expended by the Council and the matters to which they relate;
 - a record of the assets and liabilities of the Council.
- 3.3. At the end of each financial year, the internal auditor will verify bank reconciliations (for all accounts) produced by the RFO and/or other delegated officer of the Council. The internal auditor shall sign the reconciliations and the original bank statements (or similar document) as evidence of verification.
- 3.4. The accounting records shall be designed to facilitate the efficient preparation of the accounting statements in the Annual Governance and Accountability Return.
- 3.5. The RFO shall complete and certify the annual Accounting Statements of the Council contained in the Annual Governance and Accountability Return in accordance with proper practices, as soon as practicable after the end of the financial year. Having certified the

Accounting Statements, the RFO shall submit them (with any related documents) to the Council, within the timescales required by the Accounts and Audit Regulations.

- 3.6. The Council must ensure that there is an adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and internal control system in accordance with proper practices.
- 3.7. Any officer or member of the Council must make available such documents and records as the internal or external auditor consider necessary for the purpose of the audit and shall, as directed by the Council, supply the RFO, internal auditor, or external auditor with such information and explanation as the Council considers necessary.
- 3.8. The internal auditor shall be appointed by the Council and shall carry out their work to evaluate the effectiveness of the Council's risk management, control and governance processes in accordance with proper practices specified in the Practitioners' Guide.
- 3.9. The Council shall ensure that the internal auditor:
 - is competent and independent of the financial operations of the Council;
 - reports to Council in writing, or in person, on a regular basis with a minimum of one written report during each financial year;
 - can demonstrate competence, objectivity and independence, free from any actual or perceived conflicts of interest, including those arising from family relationships; and
 - has no involvement in the management or control of the Council.
- 3.10. Internal or external auditors may not under any circumstances:
 - perform any operational duties for the Council;
 - initiate or approve accounting transactions;
 - provide financial, legal or other advice including in relation to any future transactions; or
 - direct the activities of any Council employee, except to the extent that such employees have been appropriately assigned to assist the internal auditor.
- 3.11. For the avoidance of doubt, in relation to internal audit the terms 'independent' and 'independence' shall have the same meaning as described in The Practitioners' Guide.
- 3.12. The RFO shall make arrangements for the exercise of electors' rights in relation to the accounts, including the opportunity to inspect the accounts, books, and vouchers and display or publish any notices and documents required by the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014, or any superseding legislation, and the Accounts and Audit Regulations.
- 3.13. The RFO shall, without undue delay, bring to the attention of all Councillors any correspondence or report from internal or external auditors.

4. BUDGET AND PRECEPT

4.1. Before setting a precept, the Council must calculate its Council tax requirement for each financial year by preparing and approving a budget, in accordance with The Local Government Finance Act 1992 or succeeding legislation.

- 4.2. Budgets for salaries and wages, including employer contributions shall be reviewed by the Council at least annually in December for the following financial year and the final version shall be evidenced by a hard copy schedule signed by the Town Clerk and the Chair of the Council or relevant committee. The RFO will inform committees of any salary implications before they consider their draft budgets.
- 4.3. No later than December each year, the RFO shall prepare a draft budget with detailed estimates of all receipts and payments / income and expenditure for the following financial year, taking account of the lifespan of assets and cost implications of repair or replacement.
- 4.4. Unspent budgets for completed projects shall not be carried forward to a subsequent year. Unspent funds for partially completed projects may only be carried forward (by placing them in an earmarked reserve) with the formal approval of the Full Council.
- 4.5. The RFO will, in conjunction with each committee, formulate budget requirements as necessary to be included within the draft budget to be prepared and recommended by Policy and Resources Committee. This budget will then be submitted to Full Council for resolution, no later than 31 December of each year.
- 4.6. Policy and Resources Committee and then subsequently Full Council shall consider annual budget proposals in relation to the Council's forecast of revenue and capital receipts and payments including recommendations for the use of reserves and sources of funding.
- 4.7. Having considered the proposed budget, the Council shall determine its Council Tax requirement by setting a budget and fixing the precept for the ensuing financial year.
- 4.8. Any member with Council Tax unpaid for more than two months is prohibited from voting on the budget or precept by Section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 and must and must disclose at the start of the meeting that Section 106 applies to them.
- 4.9. The RFO shall **issue the precept to the billing authority no later than the end of February** and supply each member with a copy of the agreed annual budget.
- 4.10. The agreed budget provides a basis for monitoring progress during the year by comparing actual spending and income against what was planned.
- 4.11. Any addition to, or withdrawal from, any earmarked reserve shall be agreed by the Council.

5. BUDGETARY CONTROL AND AUTHORITY TO SPEND

- 5.1. Expenditure on revenue items may be authorised up to the amounts included for that class of expenditure in the approved budget. This authority is to be determined by:
 - Full Council for all items over £25,000;
 - a duly delegated committee of the Council for items between £10,000 and £25,000; or
 - the Town Clerk, for any items below £10,000.

Contracts may not be disaggregated to avoid controls imposed by these regulations.

5.2. Expenditure of less than 5% or £1,000 outside of the budget amount to be approved by the Town Clerk provided that this expenditure can be contained within the overall Annual Budget.

- 5.3. Expenditure of between 5% and 10% or £1,000 and £5,000 (whichever is greater) outside of the budgeted amount can be approved by the appropriate committee.
- 5.4. Any larger overspend must be approved by Full Council following a written report from the Town Clerk.
- 5.5. The Town Clerk or in their absence, the Operations Manager, may do the following:
 - Authorise payment of the payroll, on a monthly basis subject to any one month not exceeding one twelfth of the total budgeted sum, subject to overtime and pay rise adjustments within the overall budget.
 - In cases of extreme risk to the delivery of Council services, authorise revenue expenditure on behalf of the Council which in the Town Clerk's or Operations Manager's judgement it is necessary to carry out. Such expenditure includes repair, replacement or other work, whether or not there is any budgetary provision for the expenditure, subject to a limit of £15,000.
- 5.6. All expenditure should be reported as part of the next quarterly accounts submitted to Policy and Resources Committee.
- 5.7. No expenditure shall be authorised in relation to any capital project and no contract entered into or tender accepted involving capital expenditure unless the Council is satisfied that the necessary funds are available and the requisite borrowing approval has been obtained.
- 5.8. All capital works shall be administered in accordance with the Council's standing orders and financial regulations relating to contracts.
- 5.9. The RFO shall provide the Council with a statement of receipts and payments to date under each budget heading, comparing actual expenditure to the appropriate date against that planned as shown in the budget as part of the quarterly accounts reporting process. These statements are to be prepared at least at the end of each financial quarter and shall show explanations of material variances. For this purpose "material" shall be in excess 15% of the budget headings.

6. **PROCUREMENT**

- 6.1. **Members and officers are responsible for obtaining value for money at all times.** Any officer procuring goods, services or works should ensure, as far as practicable, that the best available terms are obtained, usually by obtaining prices from several suppliers.
- 6.2. The RFO should verify the lawful nature of any proposed purchase before it is made and in the case of new or infrequent purchases, should ensure that the legal power being used is reported to the meeting at which the order is authorised and also recorded in the minutes.
- 6.3. Every contract shall comply with these the Council's Standing Orders and these Financial Regulations and no exceptions shall be made, except in an emergency.
- 6.4. For a contract for the supply of goods, services or works where the estimated value will exceed the thresholds set by Parliament, the full requirements of The Public Contracts Regulations 2015 or any superseding legislation ("the Legislation"), must be followed in respect of the tendering, award and notification of that contract.
- 6.5. Where the estimated value is below the Government threshold, the Council shall (with the exception of items listed in paragraph 6.12) obtain prices as follows:

- For contracts estimated to exceed £60,000 including VAT, the Town Clerk shall seek formal tenders from at least three suppliers. Tenders shall be invited in accordance with Appendix 1.
- For contracts estimated to be over £30,000 including VAT, the Council must comply with any requirements of the Legislation regarding the advertising of contract opportunities and the publication of notices about the award of contracts.
- For contracts greater than £3,000 excluding VAT the Clerk shall seek at least three fixed-price quotes.
- 6.6. When the Council wishes to enter into a contract of less than £30,000 in value for the supply of goods or materials or for the execution of works or specialist services other than such goods, materials, works or specialist services as are excepted as set out in paragraph 6.12, contracts will be approved subject to the following:
 - a) Contracts over £25,000: Approval should be by Full Council with no delegation permitted.
 - b) Contracts over £10,000 and under £25,000: Approval by the Town Clerk in consultation with the Chair of the Council and the Chair of Policy and Resources Committee.
 - c) Contracts below £10,000: Approval by the Town Clerk.
 - d) Contracts which cover a period of more than one year:
 - Annual Spend over £5,000: Approval by Policy and Resources Committee
 - Annual Spend below £5,000: Approval by the Town Clerk
 - e) The Town Clerk shall obtain 3 quotations (priced descriptions of the proposed supply); where the value is below £25,000 and above £3,000 the Town Clerk shall strive to obtain 3 estimates.

Should it occur that the Council, or duly delegated committee, does not accept any tender, quote or estimate, the work is not allocated and the Council requires further pricing, provided that the specification does not change, no person shall be permitted to submit a later tender, estimate or quote who was present when the original decision-making process was being undertaken.

6.7. For smaller purchases, officers shall seek to achieve value for money.

6.8. Contracts must not be split into smaller lots to avoid compliance with these rules.

- 6.9. The requirement to obtain competitive prices in these regulations need not apply to contracts that relate to items (i) to (iv) below:
 - i. specialist services, such as legal professionals acting in disputes;
 - ii. repairs to, or parts for, existing machinery or equipment;
 - iii. works, goods or services that constitute an extension of an existing contract;
 - iv. goods or services that are only available from one supplier or are sold at a fixed price.

- 6.10. When applications are made to waive this financial regulation to enable a price to be negotiated without competition, the reason should be set out in a recommendation to the Council or relevant committee. Avoidance of competition is not a valid reason.
- 6.11. The Council shall not be obliged to accept the lowest or any tender, quote or estimate.
- 6.12. No individual member, or informal group of members may issue an official order unless instructed to do so in advance by a resolution of the Council or make any contract on behalf of the Council.
- 6.13. No expenditure may be authorised that will exceed the budget for that type of expenditure other than by resolution of the Council or a duly delegated committee acting within its Terms of Reference except in an emergency or within officer delegations.
- 6.14. No expenditure shall be authorised, no contract entered into or tender accepted in relation to any major project, unless the Council is satisfied that the necessary funds are available and that where a loan is required, Government borrowing approval has been obtained first.
- 6.15. An official order or letter shall be issued for all work, goods and services above £100 excluding VAT unless a formal contract is to be prepared or an official order would be inappropriate. Copies of orders shall be retained, along with evidence of receipt of goods.
- 6.16. Any ordering system can be misused and access to them shall be controlled by the RFO.

7. BANKING AND PAYMENTS

- 7.1. The Council's banking arrangements, including the bank mandate, shall be made by the RFO and authorised by the Council; banking arrangements shall not be delegated to a committee. The Council has resolved to bank with Unity Trust Bank. The arrangements shall be reviewed at the beginning of every Council term for security and efficiency.
- 7.2. The Council must have safe and efficient arrangements for making payments, to safeguard against the possibility of fraud or error. Wherever possible, more than one person should be involved in any payment, for example by dual online authorisation or dual cheque signing. Even where a purchase has been authorised, the payment must also be authorised and only authorised payments shall be approved or signed to allow the funds to leave the Council's bank.
- 7.3. All invoices for payment should be examined for arithmetical accuracy, analysed to the appropriate expenditure heading and verified to confirm that the work, goods or services were received, checked and represent authorised expenditure before being certified by the RFO.
- 7.4. The RFO will present schedules of online banking payments to the next scheduled meeting of Policy and Resources Committee. Prior to this meeting, the Chair and Vice-chair of this committee will randomly select three invoices to be checked against the bank statement. A record of the check will be made and any issues identified will be reported at the meeting.
- 7.5. Personal payments (including salaries, wages, expenses and any payment made in relation to the termination of employment) may be summarised to avoid disclosing any personal information.
- 7.6. All payments shall be made by the preferred option of online banking where possible, with dual online authorisation by officers. Otherwise, payments will be made by cheque or by other instructions to the Council's bank, signed by two authorised signatories.

- 7.7. For each financial year the RFO may draw up a schedule of regular payments due in relation to a continuing contract or obligation (such as salaries, PAYE, National Insurance, pension contributions, rent, rates, regular maintenance contracts and similar items), which the Council or a duly delegated committee may authorise in advance for the year.
- 7.8. The Town Clerk and RFO shall have delegated authority to authorise payments of up to £10,000 excluding VAT in cases of serious risk to the delivery of Council services or to public safety on Council premises.
- 7.9. In respect of grants, Policy and Resources Committee shall approve expenditure within any limits set by Council and in accordance with any policy statement approved by Council. Any Revenue or Capital Grant in excess of £5,000 shall before payment, be subject to ratification by resolution of the Council.
- 7.10. Councillors are subject to the Code of Conduct that has been adopted by the Council and shall comply with the Code and Standing Orders when a decision to authorise or instruct payment is made in respect of a matter in which they have a disclosable pecuniary or other interest, unless a dispensation has been granted.

8. ELECTRONIC PAYMENTS

- 8.1. Where internet banking arrangements are made with any bank, the Town Clerk shall be appointed as the Service Administrator and the Deputy Town Clerk as Deputy Service Administrator. The bank mandate approved by the Council shall identify a number of Councillors who will be authorised to approve transactions on those accounts.
- 8.2. No employee or Councillor shall disclose any PIN or password, relevant to the working of the Council or its bank accounts, to any person not authorised in writing by the Council or a duly delegated committee. Employees with internet banking access shall not disclose their password to any other member of staff or Councillor.
- 8.3. Where a computer requires use of a personal identification number (PIN) or other password(s), for access to the Council's records on that computer, a note shall be made of the PIN and passwords and shall be kept in the Council's safe in a sealed dated envelope. This envelope may not be opened other than by the Mayor in the presence of two other Councillors. After the envelope has been opened, in any circumstances, the PIN and/or passwords shall be changed as soon as practicable. The fact that the sealed envelope has been opened, in whatever circumstances, shall be reported to all members immediately and formally to the next available meeting of the Council.
- 8.4. In the prolonged absence of the Service Administrator and Deputy Service Administrator two authorised signatories shall set up any payments due.
- 8.5. Payments by internet banking will be effected by two Council officers. One officer to post the payment ready for approval, the second as RFO to give authorisation to process the payment. Once these transactions have been made, they should be recorded on a payment schedule.
- 8.6. A full list of all payments made shall be presented to Policy and Resources Committee on a monthly basis.
- 8.7. With the approval of the Council in each case, regular payments (such as gas, electricity, telephone, broadband, water, National Non-Domestic Rates, refuse collection, pension contributions and HMRC payments) may be made by variable direct debit, provided that the

instructions are signed/approved online by two authorised members. The approval of the use of each variable direct debit shall be reviewed by Policy and Resources Committee at least every two years.

- 8.8. Payment may be made by BACS or CHAPS by resolution of Policy and Resources Committee provided that each payment is approved online by two members of staff, evidence is retained and any payments are reported to Policy and Resources Committee at the next meeting. The approval of the use of BACS or CHAPS shall be renewed by resolution of the Council at least every two years.
- 8.9. Account details for suppliers may only be changed upon written notification by the supplier verified by the Finance Officer and RFO. This is a potential area for fraud and the individuals involved should ensure that any change is genuine. Data held should be checked with suppliers every two years.
- 8.10. Remembered password facilities (other than secure password stores requiring separate identity verification) should not be used on any computer used for Council banking.

9. CHEQUE PAYMENTS

9.1. Cheques will only be issued in exceptional circumstances and these will be signed by two bank signatories documented on a payment schedule.

10. PAYMENT CARDS

- 10.1. Credit cards are authorised for use by the Operations Manager, and Operations and Office Co-ordinator. There will be a monthly credit limit of £1,000 and any balance shall be paid in full each month.
- 10.2. Personal credit or debit cards of members or staff shall not be used except for expenses of up to £250 including VAT, incurred in accordance with Council policy.

11. PETTY CASH

- 11.1. The RFO and/or Finance Officer may provide petty cash to officers for the purpose of defraying operational and other expenses. Vouchers for payments made shall be forwarded to the RFO with a claim for reimbursement.
- 11.2. The RFO shall maintain a petty cash float of no more than £500 for the purpose of defraying operational and other expenses. Vouchers for payments made from petty cash shall be kept to substantiate the payment and the float should be regularly reconciled.
- 11.3. Payments to maintain the petty cash float shall be shown separately on the schedule of payments presented to Policy and Resources Committee.

12. PAYMENT OF SALARIES AND ALLOWANCES

12.1. As an employer, the Council must make arrangements to comply with the statutory requirements of PAYE legislation.

12.2. Councillors' allowances (where paid) are also liable to deduction of tax under PAYE rules and must be taxed correctly before payment.

- 12.3. Salary rates shall be agreed by the Council, or a duly delegated committee. No changes shall be made to any employee's gross pay, emoluments, or terms and conditions of employment without the prior consent of the Council or relevant committee.
- 12.4. Payment of salaries shall be made, after deduction of tax, national insurance, pension contributions and any similar statutory or discretionary deductions, on the dates stipulated in employment contracts.
- 12.5. Deductions from salary shall be paid to the relevant bodies within the required timescales, provided that each payment is reported, as set out in these regulations above.
- 12.6. Each payment to employees of net salary and to the appropriate creditor of the statutory and discretionary deductions shall be recorded in a payroll control account or other separate confidential record, with the total of such payments each calendar month reported in the cashbook. Payroll reports will be reviewed by the Town Clerk and Deputy Town Clerk to ensure that the correct payments have been made.
- 12.7. Any termination payments shall be supported by a report to the Council, setting out a clear business case. Termination payments shall only be authorised by the full Council.
- 12.8. Before employing interim staff the Policy and Resources Committee must consider a full business case.

13. LOANS AND INVESTMENTS

- 13.1. Any application for Government approval to borrow money and subsequent arrangements for a loan must be authorised by the full Council and recorded in the minutes. All borrowing shall be in the name of the Council, after obtaining any necessary approval.
- 13.2. Any financial arrangement which does not require formal borrowing approval from the Secretary of State (such as hire purchase, leasing of tangible assets or loans to be repaid within the financial year) must be authorised by the Full Council, following a written report on the value for money of the proposed transaction.
- 13.3. The Town Clerk will ensure that there are regular reports on the level of investment(s) held by the Council; these will be submitted as part of quarterly reporting to the Policy and Resources Committee. Any changes in the level of investment shall be reported to the Policy and Resources Committee and any proposals for new short-term or long-term investments shall be agreed by the Policy and Resources Committee.
- 13.4. The Council shall consider the requirement for an Investment Strategy and Policy in accordance with Statutory Guidance on Local Government Investments, which must written be in accordance with relevant regulations, proper practices and guidance. Any Strategy and Policy shall be reviewed by the Council at least annually.
- 13.5. All investment of money under the control of the Council shall be in the name of the Council.
- 13.6. All investment certificates and other documents relating thereto shall be retained in the custody of the RFO.
- 13.7. Payments in respect of short term or long-term investments, including transfers between bank accounts held in the same bank, shall be made in accordance with these regulations.

Transfer of short-term deposit funds between the Council's bank accounts can be actioned by the RFO subject to the cash flow needs of the Council.

14. INCOME

- 14.1. The collection of all sums due to the Council shall be the responsibility of and under the supervision of the RFO.
- 14.2. The Council will review all fees and charges at least annually, as part of the annual budget process.
- 14.3. The RFO can write off debts considered to be irrecoverable up to a figure of £100 per debt and these should be reported to the next meeting of the Policy and Resources Committee. Any sums found to be irrecoverable above £100 shall be reported to the Policy and Resources Committee, whereby at their discretion, authorisation can be given for the debt to be written off, providing that reasonable attempts have been made to recover the outstanding amounts.
- 14.4. Personal cheques shall not be cashed out of money held on behalf of the Council.
- 14.5. The RFO shall ensure that VAT is correctly recorded in the Council's accounting software and that any VAT Return required is submitted from the software by the due date.
- 14.6. Where significant sums of cash are regularly received by the Council, the RFO shall ensure that more than one person is present when the cash is counted in the first instance, that there is a reconciliation to some form of control record such as ticket issues, and that appropriate care is taken for the security and safety of individuals banking such cash.
- 14.7. Any income that is the property of a charitable trust shall be paid into a charitable bank account. Instructions for the payment of funds due from the charitable trust to the Council (to meet expenditure already incurred by the authority) will be given by the Managing Trustees of the charity meeting separately from any Council meeting.

15. PAYMENTS UNDER CONTRACTS FOR BUILDING OR OTHER CONSTRUCTION WORKS

- 15.1. Where contracts provide for payment by instalments the RFO shall maintain a record of all such payments, which shall be made within the time specified in the contract based on signed certificates from the architect or other consultant engaged to supervise the works.
- 15.2. Any variation of, addition to or omission from a contract must be authorised by the Town Clerk to the contractor in writing, with the Council being informed where the final cost is likely to exceed the contract sum by 5% or more, or likely to exceed the budget available.

16. STORES AND EQUIPMENT

- 16.1. The officer in charge of each section (or as otherwise delegated by Full Council) shall be responsible for the care and custody of stores and equipment in that section.
- 16.2. Delivery notes shall be obtained in respect of all goods received into store or otherwise delivered and goods must be checked as to order and quality at the time delivery is made.

*Delivery notes should be forwarded to the Finance Officer as soon as possible to form part of the backup paperwork for verification of invoices.

- 16.3. Stocks shall be kept at the minimum levels consistent with operational requirements, *or at a level that produces increased efficiency of resources.
- 16.4. The Operations Manager shall be responsible for periodic checks of stocks and stores at least annually and shall maintain and revise an annual inventory of equipment.

17. ASSETS, PROPERTIES AND ESTATES

- 17.1. The Town Clerk shall make arrangements for the safe custody of all title deeds and Land Registry Certificates of properties held by the Council.
- 17.2. The RFO shall ensure that an appropriate and accurate Register of Assets and Investments is kept up to date, with a record of all properties held by the Council, their location, extent, plan, reference, purchase details, nature of the interest, tenancies granted, rents payable and purpose for which held, in accordance with Accounts and Audit Regulations.
- 17.3. No tangible moveable property shall be purchased or otherwise acquired, sold, leased or otherwise disposed of, without the authority of the Council, together with any other consents required by law, except where the estimated value of any one item does not exceed £1,500. In each case a written report shall be provided to Council with a full business case.
- 17.4. No interest in land shall be purchased or otherwise acquired, sold, leased or otherwise disposed of without the authority of the Council, together with any other consents required by law. In each case a written report shall be provided to Council in respect of valuation and surveyed condition of the property (including matters such as planning permissions and covenants) together with a proper business case (including an adequate level of consultation with the electorate where required by law).
- 17.5. The continued existence of tangible assets shown in the Register shall be verified at least annually, possibly in conjunction with a health and safety inspection of assets.

18. INSURANCE

- 18.1. The RFO shall keep a record of all insurances effected by the Council and the property and risks covered, reviewing these annually before the renewal date in conjunction with the Council's review of risk management.
- 18.2. The Operations Manager shall give prompt notification to the Town Clerk of all new risks, properties or vehicles which require to be insured and of any alterations affecting existing insurances.
- 18.3. The RFO shall be notified of any material loss, liability, damage or event likely to lead to a claim, and shall report these if appropriate to the Council at the next available meeting. The RFO shall negotiate all claims on the Council's insurers in consultation with the Town Clerk.
- 18.4. All appropriate members and employees of the Council shall be included in a suitable form of security or fidelity guarantee insurance which shall cover the maximum risk exposure as determined by the Council, or duly delegated committee.

19. CHARITIES

19.1. Where the Council is sole managing trustee of a charitable body the Town Clerk and RFO shall ensure that separate accounts are kept of the funds held on charitable trusts and separate financial reports made in such form as shall be appropriate, in accordance with Charity Law and legislation, or as determined by the Charity Commission. The Town Clerk and RFO shall arrange for any audit or independent examination as may be required by Charity Law or any Governing Document.

20. SUSPENSION AND REVISION OF FINANCIAL REGULATIONS

- 20.1. The Council shall review these Financial Regulations once per Council term and following any change of Town Clerk or RFO. The Town Clerk shall monitor changes in legislation or proper practices and advise the Council of any need to amend these Financial Regulations.
- 20.2. The Council may, by resolution duly notified prior to the relevant meeting of Council, suspend any part of these Financial Regulations, provided that reasons for the suspension are recorded and that an assessment of the risks arising has been presented to all members. Suspension does not disapply any legislation or permit the Council to act unlawfully.
- 20.3. The Council may temporarily amend these Financial Regulations by a duly notified resolution, to cope with periods of absence, local government reorganisation, national restrictions or other exceptional circumstances.

A REPORT OF THE TOWN CLERK TO A MEETING OF THE POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE MALVERN TOWN COUNCIL

to be held on Wednesday 6 November 2024 at 6pm

in the Park View Meeting Room, Victoria Park Road, Malvern Link

BUDGET DISCUSSION DOCUMENT 2025/26

		Budget 2024/25	Actual, if known
1.	Level of inflation to include within the budget		
	NNDR (business rates)	5%	8.57%
	• Fuel	4%	-6%
	Utilities	0	Variable
		5% water	average +20%
	Contracts	2%	0-5%
	Inflation	6.7%	1.7%
	 Cost of living increase on salaries (set nationally) 	6.5%	+ £1,290 on pay scales up to SCP 43 otherwise + 2.5%
2.	Strategic Assumptions		
	Skatepark		
	Sale of land		
	Rose Bank Gardens		
	Community Hub		
	Other		
	What to include in the budget?		
3.	Grants Budget		
	Small Grants	£5,000	£1,250 awarded to date
	Large Grants	£18,000	£7,500 awarded to date
	Community Support Grants: CAB	£18,000	£18,000

AGENDA ITEM 5 REPORT PR02/24

4.	Events 2024/25 Budget	£46,800	
	Including: Bands in the Park	£7,000	£6,400
	Mayor's Bonanza	£6,000	£7,200
	Christmas Lights Switch On event	£6,050	£6,800
	Malvern in Bloom	£7,500	£5,100 to date
	Christmas Lights	£17,700	£17,700
	Budget for 2025/26		
5.	Suggestions for additional expenditure or income		
6.	Contingency fund £20,000		
7.	Public Works Loan Board repayments	2023/24	£11,237.88
		2024/25	£22,475.76
8.	Malvern Town Council Tax Base		
	• 2024/25 – 11,110		
9.	Precept Level 2024/25		
	 Precept was increased from £757,000 to £828,500 in 2024/25 		
	Council Tax Band D - £74.58		
	Precept level to aim for 2025/26?		

End Linda Blake <u>Town Clerk</u>